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STATE OF VERMONT

AGENCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802) 828-3211 : MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602
DEPARTMENTS OF: ’ DIVISIONS OF:

Economic Development 828-3221 Administration 828-3231

Housing & Community Affairs 828-3217 Historic Preservation 828-3226

Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241

February 22, 1979

Mr. Frank L. Wagner
City Clerk

City of Burlington
Burlington, VT 05401

Dear Mr. Wagner:

We are pleased to inform you that the Winooski Falls Mill
District has been officially entered on the National Register
of Historic Places.

If you desire further information regarding this nomination,
please feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,

DIVISION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION

tfyan (Jbﬁw%

William B, Pinney
Director
State Historic Preservation Officer

WBP/CHA : Tmd

cc: Arthur R. Hogan, Chittenden County Regional Planning Comm,
Randall Kamerbeek, Burlington Planning Commission
Terrence J. Boyle



STATE OF VERMONT

AGENCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802) 828-3211 MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602
DEPARTMENTS OF: ) DIVISIONS OF:
Economic Development 828-3221 Administration 828-3231

Housing & Community Affairs 828-3217 Historic Preservation 828-3226

Vermont Travel Division B28-3236
Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241

February 22, 1979

Mr. Donald R. Brunelle
City Clerk

City of Winooski
Winooski, VT 05404

Dear Mr. Brunelle:

We are pleased to inform you that the Winooski Falls Mill
District has been officially entered on the National Register
of Historic Places.

If you desire further information regarding this nomination,
please feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,

DIVISION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION

Yitlon 5.7

William B. Pinney
Director
State Historic Preservation Officer

WBP/CHA : Tmd

cc: Mark Tigan, City of Winooski
Mike Richardson, City of Winooski
Arthur R. Hogan, Chittenden County Regional Planning Comm.
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United States Department of the Interior

HERITAGE CONSERVATION AND RECREATION SERVICE
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240

IN REPLY REFER T0O:

RECEIVEDFEB 2 0 1979

The Director of the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

Chris Therral Delaporte

is pleased to inform you that the historic property listed on the enclosed
sheet has been nominated by the State Historic Preservation Officer
responsible for your State's implementation of the National Historic
Preservation Act of 1966, P.L. 89-665 (B0 Stat. 915), as amended. It has
accordingly been entered in the National Register of Historic Places. A

leaflet explaining the National Register is enclosed for your information

and convenience.

Enclosures




ENTRIES IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER

STATE VERMONT
Date Entered FED 9 1979

Name Location

Winooski Falls Mill District Winooski
Chittenden County

Also Notified

Honorable Robert T. Stafford
Honorable Patrick J. Leahy
Honorable James M. Jeffords
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For further information, please call the National Register at (202)343-6401.
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STATE OF VYERMONT

ACENCY OF DEVELEOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802) 828-3211

DEPARTMENTS OF:
Economic Development 828.3221
Housing & Cominunity Affairs 828-3217

February 7, 1979 ]

Dr. William J. Murtagh
Keeper of the National Register
National Register of Historic Places
Heritage Conservation and

Recreation Service
Office of Archeology and

Historic Preservation
Washington, D.C. 20240

Attention: Bruce MacDougal

MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602

DIVISIONS OF:
Administration 828-3231
Historic Preservation 828-3226
Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241

Re: Winooski Falls Mill District Nomination

Dear Dr, Murtagh:

Would you please make the following changes in the above nomination:

All references to Bartlet Street should be changed to Mill Street.
These occur: a) on the sketchmap; b) on the continuation sheet for

Item 4; and c¢) in the boundary description.
Thank you for your attention to this matter,
Sincerely,

DIVISION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION

Al 2 T

William B. Pinney
State Historic Preservation Offficer

WBP/CHA/c jd



STATE OF VERMONT

AGENCY O DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802) 828-3211 MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602
DEPARTMENTS OF: . DIVISIONS OF:

Economniic Development 828-3221 Administration 828-3231

Housing & Community Affairs 828-3217 ’ Historic Preservation B28-3226

Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241

,Qune 30, 1978

Dr. William J. Murtagh

Keeper of the National Register

-National Register of Historic Places
Department of the Interior

Heritage Conservation & Recreation Service
18th and C Streets, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20240

Dear Dr. Murtagh:
Enclosed please find a nomination form for the following:
— Winooski Falls Mill District
' Winooski and Burlington
Chittenden County, VT
This district is béing submitted under the Historic
Preservation Act of 1966 for inclusion on the National
Register of Historic Places.
Sincerely,
4/4%;,@’ -
William B. Pinney
Director
State Historic Preservgtion Officer
WBP/CHA/tt

Enclosures
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STATE OF VERMONT

AGENCY OI° DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802) 828-3211 MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602
- DEPARTMENTS QF: ) DIVISIONS OF: .
Economic Development 828-322) Administration 828-3231

Housing & Community Affairs 828-3217 Historic Preservation 828-3226
‘ . Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241

June 28, 1978

Mr, Frank L. Wagner
City Clerk

City of Burlington
Burlington, VT 05401

Dear Mr. Wagner:

The Division for Historic Preservation is pleased to
inform you that we are considering nominating a portion
of the City of Burlington to the National Register of
Historic Places as an Historic District.

~— Nomination to the MNational Reqgister is a formal and
: selective process for recognizing and recording at
the federal level those buildings, structures, sites
and districts which have vparticular value as physical
evidences of our local, state, and national history.

Listing in the National Register also provides a measure
of protection, through a review process at state and
federal levels, from federally funded, licensed, or
permitted projects which would adversely affect it.
The owner of a property entered on the National Register
is eligible to apply for federal Grants-In-Aid for
preservation work. .In addition, commercial properties
on the National Register are eligible for tax incentives
for certified rehabilitation as provided by the Tax
Reform Act of 1976 (P.L. 924-455, Section 2124). The
Tax Reform Act of 1976 also stipulates tax dis-
incentives in the case of demolition of a property on
the National Register, when the site is subsequently
re-used for any commercial purpose. Listing in the

. Register does not involve local zoning.
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Mr. Frank .. Wagner
June 28, 1978
Page 2

The Vermont Advisory Council on listoric Preservation
approved this proposed historic district at its meeting
on May 16, 1978. The next step in the procedure is to
inform all property owners in the proposed district of
our intention to submit the nomination to the National
‘Register, and allow them thirty (30} days to forward
any comments they may have concerning the eligibility
of the proposed district, or of their particular build-
ings. Owners were notified by mail on June 28, 1978,
and the thirty days will run until July 28, 1.978.

Enclosed is a copy of the notification letter sent to
each owner, a4 map of the proposed district, and related
information on the National Reqister. The City is also
invited to submit comments. '

Please feel free to contact us if we can provide any
information ahout the National Register, Grants-In-Aid,
or the Tax Reform Act of 1976. .

Sincerely,
DIVISION TFOR HIISTORIC PRESERVATION
William B. Pinney

Director ‘
State Historic Preservation Officer

WBP/CHA/tt
Enclosures
ce: Arthur R. Hogan, Jr., Executive Director, Chittenden

County Regional Planning Commission
Randall Kamerbeek, Burlington Planning Commission
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STATE OF VERMONT

AGENCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802) 828-3211 MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602
DEPARTMENTS OF: ) DIVISIONS OF:
Economic Development 828-3221 : .- Administration 828-3231
Housing & Community Affairs 828-3217 Historic Preservation 828-3226
Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241

June 28, 1978

Mr, Donald R. Brunelle
City Clerk

City of Winooski
Winooski, VT 05404

Dear Mr. Brunelle:

The Division for Ilistoric Preservation is pleased to
inform you that we are considering nominating a portion
of the City of Winooski to the National Register of
Historic Places as an Historic District.

4 : Nomination to the !National Reéister is a formal and
selective process for recoqgnizing and recording at
the federal level those buildings, structures, sites
and districts which have particular value as physical
evidences of our local, state, and national history.

Lising in the National Register also provides a measure
of protection, through a review process at state and
federal levels, from federally funded, licensed, or
permitted projects which would adversely affect it.
The owner of a property entered on the National Register
is eligible to apply ‘for federal Grants-In-Aid for
preservation work. In addition, commercial properties
on the National Register are eligible for tax incentives
for certified rehabilitation as provided by the Tax
Reform Act of 1976 (P.L. 924-455, Section 2124). The
Tax Reform Act of 1976 also stipulates tax dis-
incentives in the case of demolition of a property on
the National Register, when the site is subsequently
re-used for any commercial purpose. Listing in the

. Register does not involve local zoning.
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Mr. Donaid 'R. Brunelle
June 28, 1978
Page 2

The Vermont Advisory Council on Historic Preservation
approved this proposed historic district at its meeting
on May 16, 1978, The next step in the procedure is to
inform all property owners in the proposed district of
‘our intention to submit the nomination to the National
Register, and allow them thirty (30) days to forward
any comments they may have concerning the eligiblity

of the proposed district, or of their particular build-
ings. Owners were notified by mail on June 28, 1978,
and the thirty days will thus run until July 28, 1978.

Enclosed is a copy of the notification letter sent to

each owner, a map of the proposed district, and related
information on the National Register. The City is also
invited to submit comments. ' '

Please feel free to contact us if we can provide any
information about the National Register, Grants-In-Aid,
or the Tax Reform Act of 1976.

Sincerely,

>DIVISION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION

William B. Pinney j

Director
State Historic Preservation Officer

WBP/CHA/tt
Enclosures
cc: Mark Tigan, City of Winooski

Arthur R. Hogan, Jr., Chittenden County Regional
Planning Commission



STATE OF VERMONT

ACLN(,Y QI DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AF IAIR.S

OFTICE O THT SECRETARY (802) 828 3211 ) MONTPEILIER, VERMONT 05602
DUEFARTMENTS OF: . < DIVISIONS OF:
Leonomic Development 828- 5221 Administration 828-3231
Housing & Community Affairs 828-3217 [listoric Preservation 828-3226
Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Vermaont Lile Magazine 828-3241

May 17, 1978

Mr. Randall Kamerbeek
Planning Director
City Hall

Burlington, VT 05401

Dear Mr. Kamerbeek:

The Vermont Advisory Council on Historic Preservation,
pursuant to 22 V.S.A. 14, has approved the Winooski
Falls Mill District for nomination to the National
Register of Historic Places. The district is located
primarily in Winooski and is a part of the Winooski
Townscape project but includes one building (the
Chase Cotton Mill) in the City of Burlington. This
building,owned by Anwimo Associates, was included in
the.district because it is an integral part of the
"historical mill development at the Falls. A copy of
~ the sketch map of the proposed district is enclosed.

The City of Burlington will be notified and given an
opportunity to comment before the nomination is sub-
mitted to Washington. We expect this notification will
take place in the near future.

Please feel free to contact us if we can be of further
a551stance.

Sincerely,

o T

‘'William B. Pinney

Director 7 )
State Historic Preservation Officer
WBP/CHA/tt

Enclosure



STATE OF VERMONT

AGENCY QI DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNETY AFFAIRS

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802)\ 828-3211 ‘ MONTPELIER, VERMONT 025602
DEPARTMENTS OF: . DIVISIONS OFF;
Eeonomic Development 828.3221 - Administration 828-323)
Housing & Community Affairs 828 1217 Historic Preservacio s 828-3224
Vermont Trave, ov.sion §28-3236

Vermont Life Magaziae 828-3241

]

May 16, 1978

Mr. Peter Clavelle
City Manager
Winooski, VT 05404

Dear Mr. Clavelle:

The Vermont Advisory Council on Historic Preservation,
pursuant to 22 V.S.A. 14, has approved the proposal

to nominate the Winooski Falls Mill District to the
National Register of Historic Places. This approval
means that the process of nomination can move forward,
and the City will be notified and given an opportunity
to comment before the nomination is submitted to
Washington. All property owners within the proposed
District will be given the same opportunity.  We
expect this notification will take place in the

near future.

Please feel free to contact us 1f we can be of any
further assistance.

Sincerely,

William B. Pinney

Director
State listoric Preservation Officer

WBP/CliA/ Lt

cc: Mr. Hugh Boyd
. ' Mr. Mark Tigan
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SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TO COMPLETE NATIONAL REGISTER FORMS
TYPE ALL ENTRIES -- COMPLETE APPLICABLE SECTIONS
ﬁNAME

MISTORIC

HECEIVEQ

Winooski Falls M111 D1str1ct
AND/OR COMMON .

Same

.LOCATION

sTReeT & numaeer North bank of Winooski River at Winooski

Falls and approximately 950' on south bank __worrom puBLicATION
CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT

CITY, TOWN

Burlington § Winooski__ viciniry of Vermont
STATE ) CODE COUNTY CODE
Vermont 50 Chittenden 07
EJCLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP ' STATUS. PRESENT USE
X_oisTRICT __PUBLIC Xoccurieo AGRICULTURE . MUSEUM
—.BUILDING|(S) X PRIVATE KX unoccuriED X COMMERCIAL —PARK
__STRUCTURE _BOTH __WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL X PRIVATE RESIDENCE
o~ —SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE —ENTERTAINMENT  __RELIGIOUS
. __OBJECT -_IN'PROCESS X YES: RESTRICTED _GOVERNMENT  __SCIENTIFIC
" X.BElNG CONSIDERED —-YES: UNRESTRICTED . __INDUSTRIAL — TRANSPORTATION
™ e . - «—NO - .. . —MIUTARY . . —OTHER:
Y OWNER OF PROPERTY B
NAME ' .
Multiple . (See Continuation Sheet)
STREET & NUMBER
CITY. TOWN STATE
Burlington § Winooski —_ VICINITY OF Vermont .
BLOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION ~ 1
COURTHOUSE,
- RPEGISTRYOFDEEDSEIC posessor's Office, City Hall  City Clerk's Office, City Hall
STREET & NUMBER
Chuxrch Street 27 West Allen Street
CITY. TOWN STATE
Burlington Winooski Vermont
*_[IREPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
o TITLE
None
K DATE .
> __FEDERAL __STATE _COUNTY __LOCAL
N DEPQSITORY FOR

SURVEY RECORDS

CITY, TOWN STATE
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#4  WINOOSKI FALLS MILL DISTRICT - OWNER

BURL INGTON

MU b _
Barttet Street

1. Chase Cotton Mill Anwimo- Associates
, Mil1l Street; Burlington, Vermont 05401

WINOOSKI

East Canal Street

2. Champiain Woolen Mill ' Winooski Real Estate Trust
. 10 Kearney; Needham, Massachusetts 02192

Lower Main Street

~ 3. Contemporary intrusion (4) Rodney Myers
127 West Street; Winooski, Vermont 05404
4, Contemporary intrusion (6-8) Louis Lapidou
129 Prospect Parkway; Burlington, Vermont
. 05401
5. Commercial block (22) John 0'Brien

149 Ferguson; Bur11ngton, Vermont 05401
West Canal Street

6. Private residence (22)1z- ErpestLe-Sage- STEULA TAALY A{

Vermont 05401

7. Colchester Mill (24-28) Dichter Realty Corporation
11 Clements Street; Newton,
Massachusetts 02158

§. 01d Wheelhouse & Penstock Green Mountain Power Company
1 Main Street, Burlington, Vermont 05401
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West Canal Street (cont.) .
9. Mill Office (30) Regular Veterans Assoclation

30 West Canal Street
Winooski, Vermont 05404

11, Remains of Burlington Woolen Mill Edward Matte
320 Malletts Bay Avenue .
Winooski, Vermont 05404 i

12. Remains of Timber Dam Green Mountain Power Company
One Main Street
Burlington, Vermont 05401

Weaver Street

/_40. Mill Boarding House Julia.Melanson
: ' . 24 Weaver Street
Winooski, Vermont 05404

P
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DESCRIPTION

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT -_DETERIORATED _-UNALTERED X ORIGINAL SITE -
X._Gcoop X_RUINS X ALTERED © _MOQVED DATE
X_faR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Winooski Falls Mill District covers approximately 20.6 acres at the southern edge of

the City of Winooski, and extends across the Winooski River to include a portion of the

City of Burlington. The District contains ten structures, the focal points of which are

three large mills and their associated wheelhouses, penstocks, and raceways. Nearly all

the structures are of brick and stone construction, and span the period 1837-1912. The
_ structures and power canals are in a variety of conditions, from good to ruins,

The structures in the District are as follows:
1, Chase Cotton Mill, 1892.

The only building in the District located in the City of Burlington, the Chase Mill was
constructed at the upper falls by the Burlington Cotton Mill Company. It is a massive
brick structure, 33 bays long, rising three stories on the west end but only two on the
east because of a large rock outcropping. The windows are very tall, much larger than
is found in residential use, to light the work areas and are set in segmentally-arched
surrounds. - Water to power the machinery entered through two head gates connected to the
upper dam. One gate opens into a small sluiceway and directly behind the gate is a hori-
zontally placed wheel. The gearing mechanism to change the direction of the power pro-
duced and transferred it to machinery inside the mill is still intact. The other gate
controls water entering an open iron flume which leads to the remains of a large wheel-
house from an earlier mill on the site.

¢ 2. Champlain Mill, 1912.

Constructed of brick above a battered concrete foundation, it rises five stories above .
the river. The main section is 28 hays (280 feet) on the river facade, and eight bays’
(100 feet) on the side facades. A slightly smaller one-story clerestory rests on the
nearly flat roof. At the west end of the mill a small square tower rises two stories
above the main mass, and its flat roof and corbelled corner brackets impart an Italianate
sense to the building, Windows in the main block are very large and set within segmental
arches. Each window is centrally divided by a heavy mullion and each has a transom bar -
approximately one-third of the distance from the top. Each window thus contains a total
of 42 panes. Basement windows on the river facade are shortened due to the foundation,
and consist of only the 12 panes above the transom bar. ’

The building has a hint of a cornice, created by corbelling out four courses, so that the 4
arches of the top story windows are in deeper reveals than those below.

At the northeast corner of the bulldlng is a rectangular tower, one story taller than
the main mass. It contains the most elaborate decorative elements of the building which
is still minimal. All ornament is structural rather than applied, and is all done by cor-
belling. Corner pilasters project slightly, creating visual buttresses, and their cor-
belled.capitals support a plain corbelled entablature. The wooden eaves project to rein-
force the Italianate sense of the main block. '

3 and 4. Intrusions.




Form No 10.300a . . ’ 4 ,
{Hev 10-74) .

UNITED STATES DEPARIMINT OF THE INTERIOR FOR NP5 USE ONLY
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE S
. ‘ RECEIVED I
7~~~ "TONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
" INVENTORY -- NOMINATIQN FORM DATE ENTERED

CONTINUATIONSHEET 1 ITEM NUMBER 7 | PAGE 2

5.° The commercial block at 22 Lower Main Street was built c. 1845. A 2-1/2 story,
three-bay Greek Revival commercial structure, it was constructed of brick with a gable
end fronting on Main Street. Around 1890, another story was added, and the gable front
was replaced with simple corbelled brick bands. The original storefront was removed
and three new ones added at that time. The building has been painted several colors

- since its construction. ’ ’

6. The residence at‘gg‘West Canal Street is a simple, three-bay, 2-1/2 story workman's ‘
cottage. Constructed in the 1850's, the frame building was originally clad in clapboards '
and had a slate roof. It has undergone numerous alterations, including the changing of
window and door openings, and sheathing of the walls in asphalt shingles.

7. Colchester Millyard, standing on a large rock outcropping at a bend in the Winooski,
was built in several stages from c. 1860 to 1902. The predominant style of the buildings
is Romanesque Revival, Major portions of the complex include the Colchester Merino Mill,
which runs generally north-south; it is three stories, brick, with large rectangular 20-
pane windows under three-course segmental arches. Completed in 1880, its interior is
avy beam construction. The building was extended  to the south in 1902 by the addition
I a 150-foot long wing of similar design, spanning the existing raceway.

Attached to the west of this building is the Winooski Worsted Mill, built in 1895 and
incorporating parts of a c. 1860 mill. Generally similar in design to the Colchester
Merino Mill, it is also brick, with windows set in relieving arches. Because of the
severity of the slope upon whibth it is built, the basement level is heavily buttressed.
The interior wood beam construction is further strengthened by an elaborate metal tie-rod
system. The mill spans a section of the earlier canal to the Burlington Woolen Mill.

As built, the Winooski Worsted Mill was not connected to the Colchester Mill; the attach-
ment was accomplished by means of a 1902 addition.

8. Substantial portions of the water-power systems remain the most significant of which ¥ <
is the wheelhouse. At the Colchester Merino Mill, water passed under the building through p=

a sluiceway which was a section of the earlier canal. Flow of water underneath the wmill
was controlled by a set of four head gates at the bend of the Winooski River. Beneath
the mill, a pair of sluice gates controlled entry of water into two penstocks. One of
these led to the wheelhouse, which now contains a water turbine. Built to power an .
earlier mill, it was enlarged when the Colchester Merino Mill was constructed. The second R
penstock leads to the remains of another wheelhouse. It was built before 1880 and may
have been constructed for one of the additions to the Burlington Mill (#11}.

o
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9, The Mill Office was built c. 1880 in the Colchester Millyard off West Canal Street.
A five-bay structure with central entrance, it is two stories on the street facade and ;
three bays in the rear, due to the steeply. sloping site. Like the other buildings in Eq;::
the yard, it is brick and utilizes simple Romanesque Revival detailing. . *
;
pr—

10. Mill Boarding House, c. 1840.

Adjacent to the Colchester Millyard, the boarding house was built to house mill workers.
It is vaguely Greek Revival in stylistic aspiration, revealed in the narrow cornice re- :
turns on the gable (Weaver Street) elevation. This facade is three bays wide with a cen- :
tral entrance. The two-story building is brick over a stone foundation,

The long West Canal Street facade is 18 bays long, and originally contained six row hpuses
each three bays wide. These included a door and two windows on the first floor and two
windows on the second. A brick parapet extends above the gabled roof at the center of the
long facade. The building has been altered for commercial use.

K'Ll' Remains of original Burlington Woolen Mill. ‘ ;

Built in 1837, the mill was constructed of local stene and rose five stories plus cleres-
tory and stair tower with cupola. (See enclosed copy of c. 1865 lithograph.) The mill
was powered by a large canal running under the building., Fire destroyed the building in
1961,

12. Timber dam at lower falls, built 1837.

The dam created a pond which provided power for the Burlington Woolen Mill, and later for |~
the Colchester Merino Mill. The dam was heavily damaged in the Flood of 1927 which devas-} *
tated Vermont, and it was never repalred *

13, Commercial Structure - 1978. Intrusion,
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Bl SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
_PREMISTORIC  __ARCHEULOGY-PREMISTORIC  __COMMUNITY PLANNING _ LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  __RELIGION
1400-1499 — ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION _LAW —.SCIENCE
Y ™ 01599 —AGRICULTURE ' _ECONOMICS — LITERATURE ' __SCULPTURE
£0-1699 XarchitecTure __EDUCATION __MILITARY —-SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
_1700-1799 __ART ESENGINEERING - MusIC — THEATER
X 1800-1899 —COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY — TRANSPORTATION
.. 1900- __COMMUNICATIONS XinpusThY " __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT . OTHER {SPECIFY)
__INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Winocoski Falls Mill District is sipgnificant for its association with the City's his-
toric role as a major textile center. The city still reflects the strong heritage of the
mills' Irish and French-Canadian workers and the institutions they began. The Winooski
Falls Mill District also presents an important record of industrial archeology. The Dis-
trict's mill complex grew almost continuously for seventy-five years and so provides a uni-
que look at the evolution and adaptation of mill structures and their associated power sys-
tems into the rugged topography along the falls.

Winooski's early settlers were quick to take advantage of the energy available from the two
sets of falls in the Winooski River. In 1786, Ira Allen, one of the town's founders, built
a dam across the river at the upper falls, and constructed sawmills at each end to produce
lumber for the Quebec and British markets, Allen's mill was the first in a line of busi-
ness ventures that were attracted to the river because of the power available at the site.

~* 1835, a group of Burlington businessmen organized the Burlington Mill Company and se-
Jred title to all the water privileges on the Colchester (now Winooski) side of the river
in what was then known as the Village of Winooski Falls. In 1837, the Burlington Woolen
Mill (#11) and its power canal were constructed below the lower falls. During its earliest
years, the Burlington Woolen Company employed single girls similar to the system established
earlier in Lowell, Massachusetts. Housing for the factory operatives was built around a
large common which climbed the hill to the village's meeting house in a series of terraces.

In 1846, the Winooski Mill Company was organized to manufacture cotton products, and the ;
Winooski Mill was built on the Burlington side of the river by the upper falls. The Winoo- E

ski Mill Company remained in operation until 1888, when it was reorganized as the Burlington b
Cotton Mill. '

On the Winocoski side of the river, frequent changes in ownership of the mill complex and
wool business occurred throughout the early history of the original mill. In 1860, however,
one of the mill's owners discovered a new cleaning process which made wool production more
profitable. In the 1860's, the effects of the "cotton famine'" combined with new management
under the Burlington Woolen Company to produce a period of dramatic expansion for the mills,
New mills were built and replaced in a matter of years. Water systems, and new steam-power
systems were continuously constructed and adapted to meet expanding production needs and
the demands of the site. This rapid growth in the textile industry brought to the village
large numbers of French-Canadian and Irish workers, along with their reSpectlve cultures

and social institutions. In the 1880's and 1890's, the Colchester Merino Mill and Winooski
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Worsted Mill (#7) were built., In 1902, the American Woolen Company bought the entire
Burlington Woolen Company and expanded the mills into one of the most modern woolen
plants in the country. The Champlain Mill (#2) was constructed in 1912. By the 1920's,

the American Woolen Company at Winooski Falls was one of the state's largest employers, i..h;
and proyided both economic and social focus for the village. s
oot

In 1922, the village split off from the Town of Colchester, incorporating itself as the
City of Winooski. Just five years later, disaster struck the city and the mills when a
major flood of the Winooski River destroyed the two dams and damaged the mills exten-
sively. The city never fully recovered. The American Woolen Company closed down its
Winooski operations in 1954, leaving behind the mills, wheelhouses, and canals as a tes-
tament to Winooski's textile dominance.
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The boundaries of the Winooski Falls Mill District are described as follows:

beginning at a Point A, the intersection of the north bank of the Winooski River
with the extension in a southwesterly direction of the western boundary of the
Dichter Realty property {containing the Colchester Mill, #7 on map) proceeding
generally northeast along said extension and property line, and its extension in

a northeasterly direction, to Point B, the intersection with the centerline of
West Canal Street; thence proceeding generally southeast along said centerline to
Point C, the intersection with the centerline of Mayc Street; thence proceeding
generally northeast along the latter centerline to Point D, the intersection with
the centerline of West Center Street; thence proceeding generally southeast along
the latter centerline to Point E, the intersection with centerline of Weaver Street;
thence proceeding generally southwest along the latter centerline to Point F, the
intersection with the centerline of West Canal Street; thence proceeding generally
southeast and east along the centerline of West Canal Street and East Canal Street
to Point G, the intersection of said centerline with the westernmost edge of the
driveway on the west side of the building facing north on East Canal Street in
Phase I of the Winooski Urban Renewal project; thence proceeding south along said
western edge to Point H, where said driveway turns east; thence proceeding east
along the south edge of said driveway and its extension in an easterly direction

to Point I, the intersection of said extension with a line running north and south
and passing through a point 200 feet east of the easternmost wall of the Champlain
Mill (#2); thence proceeding south along said line, crossing the Winooski River
into the City of Burlington, to Point J, the northeastern corner of the property

of Anwimo Assoclates, containing the Chase Cotton Mill; thence proceeding generally
south, along the eastern boundary of said property, to Point K, the southeastern
corner of said property; thence proceeding generally west, along the southern boun-
dary of said property, to Point L, the southwestern corner of said property; thence
proceeding generally northwest, along the western boundary of said property and

its extenslon in a northwesterly dLKecE}on, to Point M, the intersection of this
extensior with the centerline of Street; thence proceeding generally west
along said centerline, and its extension in a westerly direction, to Point N, the
intersection with the Winooski-Burlington boundary; thence proceeding generally
south, southwest, north, and northwest, along said boundary to Point O, a point

on said boundary from which a line drawn to Point A (the point of beginning) inter-
sects the line from Point A to Point B at right angles to Point A; thence proceeding
generally northwest along said line to Point A, the point of beginning.
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